
Contact: Julie Britton. Democratic Services Officer (01362) 656343
Email: julie.britton@breckland.gov.uk

A G E N D A

ANGLIA REVENUES & BENEFITS PARTNERSHIP
JOINT COMMITTEE

DATE & TIME Tuesday, 25th September, 2018 at 11.00 am
VENUE: Level 5 Meeting Room, Breckland House, St Nicholas Street, Thetford  

IP24 1BT

For the attention of:

Mr B. Provan, Waveney District Council (Chairman)
Mr P.D. Claussen, Breckland Council
Mr D Ambrose Smith, East Cambridgeshire District Council
Mr S. Edwards, West Suffolk (Forest Heath District Council)
Mrs A. Hay, Fenland District Council
Mr I Houlder, St Edmundsbury Borough Council (Vice-Chairman)
Mr R Kerry, Suffolk Coastal District Council

PART A
ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Page(s)
herewith

1. MINUTES 1 - 5
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2018.

2. APOLOGIES 
To receive apologies for absence.

3. URGENT BUSINESS 
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any items of urgent business 
pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

4. DECLARATIONS 

5. PERFORMANCE REPORT (STANDING ITEM) 
Reports of the Operational Board:

a) Highlight Report and Balance Scorecard 6 - 48 

Reports by Stuart Philpot, Strategic Manager (Support Services) ARP.

b) ARP Financial Performance Report 49 - 53 

Report by Christine Marshall, Executive Director Commercialisation (ARP 
Treasurer).

Public Document Pack



Anglia Revenues and Benefits Partnership Joint Committee
25 September 2018

Democratic Services Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE

Date: Monday, 17 September 2018

Page(s)
herewith

6. WELFARE REFORM UPDATE (STANDING ITEM) 54 - 57
Report by Adrian Mills, Strategic Manager (Benefits) ARP.

7. NORWICH PARTNERSHIP - PARTNERSHIP WORKING THROUGH 
SECTION 113 AGREEMENT 

58 - 60

Report of Paul Corney - Head of ARP.

8. OPTIONS FOR NEW PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT 61 - 65
Report by Jill Korwin, Director for West Suffolk Councils & Nick Khan, Strategic 
Director for East Suffolk Councils 

9. FORTHCOMING ISSUES (STANDING ITEM) 
To note any items (if any).

10. NEXT MEETING 
To note the arrangements for the next meeting on Tuesday, 4 December 2018 
at 10.00am, Level 5, Breckland House, Thetford.



1

BRECKLAND COUNCIL
FOREST HEATH DISTRICT COUNCIL

EAST CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL
ST EDMUNDSBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL

FENLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
WAVENEY DISTRICT COUNCIL

SUFFOLK COASTAL DISTRICT COUNCIL

At a Meeting of the

ANGLIA REVENUES AND BENEFITS PARTNERSHIP JOINT COMMITTEE

Held on Tuesday, 26 June 2018 at 10.00 am in the
Level 5 Meeting Room, Breckland House, St Nicholas Street, Thetford  IP24 1BT

PRESENT
Mr D Ambrose Smith
Mr P.D. Claussen
Mr S. Edwards
Mrs A. Hay

Mr I Houlder
Mr R Kerry (Chairman)
Mr B. Provan (Vice-Chairman)

In Attendance
Jo Andrews
Sam Anthony

- Strategic Manager (Revenues)
- Head of HR & OD (Fenland District Council)

Alison Chubbock - Chief Accountant (Deputy Section 151 
Officer) (BDC)

Paul Corney - Head of ARP
Emma Grima - Director of Commercial Services (East 

Cambs District Council)
Homira Javadi - Chief Finance Officer S151 (Waveney & 

Suffolk Coastal)
Jill Korwin - Director (Forest Heath & St Edmundsbury)
Teresa Smith - Democratic Services Team Leader

Action By
15/18 CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN 

After being duly proposed and seconded and with no other nominations being 
made it was RESOLVED that Councillor Bruce Provan be appointed as 
Chairman for the ensuing year.

After being duly proposed and seconded and with no other nominations being 
made it was RESOLVED that Councillor Ian Houlder be appointed as Vice-
Chairman for the ensuing year.

16/18 APPOINTMENT OF TREASURER 

After being duly proposed and seconded and with no other nominations being 
made it was RESOLVED that Breckland District Council be appointed as 
Treasurer for the ensuing year.

17/18 MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 March 2018 were agreed as a correct 
record.

1

Agenda Item 1



Anglia Revenues and Benefits Partnership Joint Committee
26 June 2018

2

Action By
18/18 APOLOGIES 

None.

19/18 URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY) 

None.

20/18 DECLARATIONS 

None.

21/18 PERFORMANCE REPORT (STANDING ITEM) 

 (a) Highlight report  

The Strategic Manager (Revenues) presented the report and highlighted 
that Benefits performance was meeting the profiled targets and was on 
course to achieve the year end targets.

Discussions had taken place with Norfolk and Suffolk County Councils to 
support the review of single person discounts but Members were informed 
that Cambridgeshire County Council had decided not to provide further 
funding.

Revenues collections continued to meet target expectations with the 
exception of non-domestic rates collection for Waveney District Council.  
The reason was due to a refund relating to backdated mandatory charity 
relief which had already been allocated by Finance team.

Further recovery work was continuing with the team who had already 
exceeded the amount collected by £50,000 based on the same time the 
previous year.

The enforcement team had recently appointed a sixth enforcement agent 
which would provide resilience within the team.  

A review had been carried out of the resource required to deal with the 
levels of correspondence and calls received throughout the year.  As a 
result, the Operational Improvement Board had agreed to increase staffing 
by 2.5fte on a temporary basis, subject to review.
 
Members were informed that as part of the digitalisation and transformation 
project 15,000 Council Tax Payers had opted to receive their bills and 
notifications electronically rather than the traditional letter.  

Councillor Edwards asked why Cambridgeshire County Council had 
decided to no longer contribute and if it could be identified as to what the 
savings had been for Cambridgeshire versus their contribution.  Members 
were informed that a briefing note would be prepared to explain the 
generation of extra income.  

Councillor Ambrose-Smith said as a County Councillor he was not aware 
that Cambridgeshire County Council were no longer contributing, and 
asked for further information to enable him to challenge the decision.  
Councillor Hay also asked for the same information.

2



Anglia Revenues and Benefits Partnership Joint Committee
26 June 2018

3

Action By

Members asked to be kept informed of the discussions.

Councillor Hay asked for additional information to be captured within the 
report to include the report author, and also liked to see the currency 
symbols added to any table of figures produced.  She also asked if the 
performance figures could be shown per council, rather than a collective 
figure.  In addition, it was queried as to the number of debts the recovery 
collection referred to.  The information would be supplied by the Strategic 
Manager (Revenues).

 (b) Operational Performance - Balanced Scorecard March 2017/2018  

Members were informed that in total, four authorities were slightly over the 
8-day target for processing Council Tax Support cases, these authorities 
average processing time was below 9-days in all cases. 

Councillor Hay asked why fraud had been identified as a higher amount 
compared to previous years.  It was noted that it was a higher amount due 
to the team finding smarter ways of identifying fraud and some one-off wins 
in respect of business rates.

Where a business rates appeal was upheld it could lead to a refund dated 
back to 2010 which had an impact on the target figures.  However, Finance 
Teams calculated a provision allocated within the accounts should it be 
required.  Members felt that ARP were appearing to fail in their performance 
when in fact they had no influence over the Valuation Office decision.

The Head of ARP confirmed the Operational Improvement Board were 
considering how the performance data was reported to make it clearer and 
easier to understand for each authority involved.

Councillor Houlder asked at what point the clock started to tick with 
processing a claim as he was aware of claimants who were finding it 
difficult to contact the office during working hours.  The Head of ARP said 
the clock started to tick at the point the claimant made contact and 
customers were asked to provide the information as quickly as possible.  
Officers continued to improve the website to make it easier for the customer 
make to contact.

 (c) Operational Performance - Balanced Scorecard as at end of May 2018  

The current performance reporting to the end of May 2018 was ‘good’.  
There was an issue with the Waveney Business rates due to backdating the 
mandatory charitable relief but it was hoped it would be recovered by the 
end of the financial year.

Councillor Kerry noted that half the target for fraud had been achieved 
within the first two months of the year.  Members were informed it had been 
an exceptional two months but also the target had not been reviewed within 
the last two years but it was thought the target would be exceeded for the 
coming year.  

 (d) Financial Performance  

The Breckland Chief Accountant presented the financial performance as at 

3



Anglia Revenues and Benefits Partnership Joint Committee
26 June 2018

4

Action By
31 March 2018.  The committed transformation funding was at £180,529 at 
31 March 2018 and it was expected the budget would be spent by the end 
of 2018/19.  If all of the identified expenditure was achieved by end of 
2018/19 and there would be £47,928 remaining for future projects.

The efficiency target of £531,000 was fully achieved.

22/18 WELFARE REFORM UPDATE (STANDING ITEM) 

The Strategic Manager (Benefits) presented the report highlighting that the 
Universal Credit had been rolled out at the Dereham Job Centre and would 
be in Thetford during September 2018.  Universal Credit for all new claims 
would be rolled out to all DWPs within the ARP Councils by the end of the 
year.  

The Government had made an announcement that in order to manage 
migration the deadline, for cases currently receiving Housing Benefit, to move 
to Universal Credit had been extended by 12 months to March 2023.  

The Chairman asked if the 5-week wait was still an issue.  It was emphasised 
that this would always be the case, due to the length of time it took to gather 
information and process the claim.  If the claim involved rental payments, it 
could often be delayed for 8 – 13 weeks, which was causing issues.

23/18 JOINT COMMITTEE UPDATE - NEW COUNCILS' STATUS 

The Chief Finance Officer for East Suffolk, Suffolk Coastal and Waveney 
District Councils updated Members that approval had been given by 
Government in late May to abolish Forest Heath District, St Edmundsbury 
Borough, Suffolk Coastal District and Waveney District and replace them with 
two non-metropolitan districts – West Suffolk and East Suffolk.  The new 
councils would be created on 1 April 2019 ahead of the elections on 2 May 
2019.

She gave Members of the ARP Partnership assurance that measures were in 
place and operational work would not be affected.  

One aspect of change would be the governance of the Anglia Revenues 
Partnership in that the existing governance of seven partners would reduce to 
five to reflect the new partnership therefore a new partnership agreement 
would be framed and signed accordingly.

The Head of ARP added that he was content with the way in which the 
project was progressing and satisfied that everything was in place to make it 
successful, and that Members would be kept informed of the progress. 
 

24/18 SUMMARY OF 2017/18 INTERNAL AUDIT REVIEWS OF ANGLIA 
REVENUES PARTNERSHIP (ARP) FOR JOINT COMMITTEE 

Michelle Emmens from East Suffolk and Kathy Woodward from Fenland 
presented to Members the report adding that it was the first year of a joint 
internal audit approach to review the ARP revenues and benefits systems by 
East Suffolk, Fenland District Council and West Suffolk Internal Audit Teams 
on behalf of the seven ARP authorities.

Out of the five areas of audit undertaken all were given the audit opinion of 

4



Anglia Revenues and Benefits Partnership Joint Committee
26 June 2018

5

Action By
adequate / reasonable assurance with a number of recommendations; 
progress had already been made on delivering the recommendations.  The 
Internal Audit team would continue to monitor the recommendations and 
report back to the Operational Improvement Board and each of the authorities 
Audit Committees.  They both thanked ARP for their assistance in 
approaching the audit which had been very successful.

The Head of ARP thanked the Audit teams for their work and added it 
displayed the true spirit of working in partnership.

25/18 FORTHCOMING ISSUES (STANDING ITEM) 

Councillor Ambrose-Smith asked when the Joint Committee could expect to 
see the new style performance reporting.  It was confirmed that the new 
format was being discussed by the Operational Improvement Board, and 
more information would be reported back to the Joint Committee as soon as 
possible.

26/18 NEXT MEETING 

The arrangements for the next meeting on Tuesday 25 September 2018 at 
10.00am, Level 5, Thetford were noted.

The meeting closed at 11.00 am

CHAIRMAN

5



ANGLIA REVENUES PARTNERSHIP

Report of Strategic Managers

To:             ARP Joint Committee, 25th September 2018 

Subject: Highlight Report

Purpose: To provide a performance update

1.0    INTRODUCTION

1.1    Background

1.1.1 This highlight report supplements the Balanced Scorecard to provide an update on 
performance and overview of other initiatives undertaken.

2.0 Benefits & Fraud

2.1 Benefits performance

2.1.1 Benefits performance is meeting profiled targets and is on course to achieve year 
end targets. This places us in a strong position as we gear up for the remaining 
implementation of the full Universal Credit service for partner Councils throughout 
September and October, completing December 2018.
Further development continues with Customer Service teams and our software 
supplier to enhance our on line forms.

2.1.2 The Strategic Manager (Benefits) continues to participate in national DWP/LA 
Housing Benefit Steering Groups to have input into shaping and influencing current 
and proposed operational and Government grant funding matters. Current topics 
include Universal Credit plans, tackling fraud and error and data share, as well as 
participation in a Funding group looking at the methodology of future Government 
grant distributions. 
The Head of the ARP and the Strategic Manager (Benefits) participated in a 
Parliamentary Social Security Advisory Committee call for evidence on the 6th 
September concerning proposed regulations for the Universal Credit managed 
migration. This will inform a report to the DWP Minister.
 

2.2      Fraud and Compliance performance

2.2.1 Following the transfer of Housing Benefit fraud to the DWP on the 1 September 
2015, the team have been tasked, in accordance with the Business Case approved 
by Joint Committee, to identify and prevent fraud leading to an increase in Council 
Tax income in the following areas:
 Local Council Tax Support 
 Single Person Discount
 Council Tax & Non Domestic Rates
 Tenancy fraud
Furthermore, the team are working with Housing Teams and Housing Associations to 
tackle Right to buy and subletting abuse and are having success in this area. During 
the year the team have identified several dwellings and businesses either not 

Recommendation(s):

     That the report is noted

6

Agenda Item 5a



registered or having had an undeclared change in use that has led to increased 
charges - in some cases significant higher retrospective charges. 

2.2.2 The table below records the excellent work of the team, on track to exceed targets for 
the year.   

2.2.3 Whilst Suffolk and Norfolk County Councils have agreed to support the review of 
Single Person Discounts, Cambridgeshire has ceased further funding from April 
2018. Following a request at Joint Committee June 2018 we have provided a briefing 
note to East Cambridge and Fenland for discussions with Cambridgeshire County 
Council. We are planning discussions with Norfolk and Suffolk County Councils 
regarding continuance of funding from April 2019.

2.2.4 Through the ARP Management arrangement with Norwich City Council, we have 
employed an additional resource from the 1st April 2018, fully funded by Norwich City 
Council and Norfolk County Council, to undertake similar work for Norwich City 
Council. 

3.0 Revenues

3.1 Collection

3.1.1 Performance continues to meet targets in all areas with the exception of Non-
Domestic Rates collection for Fenland and Waveney District Councils.  The reason 
behind the drop in NNDR collection for Fenland D C is £1.1 Million in backdated 
refunds mainly due to RV changes and for Waveney DC is a refund of £600K relating 
to backdated mandatory charity relief.

3.1.2 The Further Recovery team have collected £491K this financial year which exceeds 
the amount collected this time last year by £213K.  In addition to the monies collected 
by the further recovery team we also have a further £1.742 Million in secured debt by 
way of Charging Orders on property owned by the debtor.

3.1.3 The Further Recovery team is partly funded by Norfolk & Suffolk County Council, 
however Cambridgeshire County Council has ceased further funding from April 2018. 
Following a request at Joint Committee June 2018 we have provided a briefing note 
to East Cambridge and Fenland for discussions with Cambridgeshire County Council. 
We are planning discussions with Norfolk and Suffolk County Councils regarding 
continuance of funding from April 2019.

 
3.2  Enforcement

3.2.1 The Enforcement Team continue to perform well, having collected £11.89 Million since 
the team started of which £2.2M has been in this financial year.  We have recently 
recruited a sixth Enforcement Agent to provide some resilience and have replaced 
another Enforcement Agent who left our Employment.  One of these was already a 
certificated enforcement agent and the other was a member of our recovery team 
moved into the team with valuable experience.  We continue to speak to other 

Description of financial saving 2018/19 
target

Performance 
01.04.18 to 

31.08.18
Single Person Discount fraud 500,000 435,232

Local Council Tax Support 
fraud

150,000 80,904

Tenancy fraud 400,000 270,000
Other (Council Tax and NDR) 250,000 432,287
Total financial savings 1,300,000 1,218,423

7



authorities with a view to expanding the service and second external partner will join 
the enforcement agency from July 2019.

3.3 Council Tax

3.3.1 Local Authorities receive payment each year based on the number of domestic 
properties brought into use (new and previously empty).  Each year we carry out an 
exercise to review all empty properties in order to maximise new homes bonus.  
Figures for the purpose of calculating the new homes bonus are taken form the 
Council Tax base return which is completed in early October and we are working 
towards this deadline.  Review forms were sent in May to the owners of each long term 
empty property to establish if the property remains empty and their intention with 
regard the property.  Where requested by the Housing Teams we also include 
information which may help the owner bring the property back into use.  Reminders 
were issued in July and we are currently visiting properties where we still have had no 
response to the review form.  

3.3.2 Members will recall that a review of Council Tax reminder and final notices was 
completed last year using nudge techniques to encourage customers to keep their 
payments up to date.  This financial year we have started to monitor the number of 
reminder and final notices issued each month to see if the new design has had an 
impact.  I am pleased to report that the number of these notices has started to 
decrease each month compared to the same period last year.  We will continue to 
monitor to see if this trend continues and make any changes to the design we feel 
appropriate.

3.4 Non-Domestic Rates

3.4.1 As reported previously the new rate reliefs announced by Government to assist those 
facing steep increases as a result of the revaluation were implemented last year in 
respect of the three new schemes:

 Supporting small business relief
 Public Houses
 New discretionary scheme

The first two reliefs have been applied to accounts for the current financial year.   In 
respect of the new discretionary scheme, we continue to try and maximise the 
amount of relief awarded in respect of 2017/18 and have now started applying relief 
for the 2018/19 financial year.

4.0   Support

4.1    Digital Transformation and Self Service 

4.1.1  The sign up to self-service for Council Tax payers and Housing Benefit recipients 
across the ARP now exceeds 15,000 and is continuing to rise each month, with 
residents opting to receive their bills and notifications electronically, rather than by 
traditional letter.   
The shift away from the traditional method of receiving a Council Tax Bill, Business 
Rates Bill or Benefits notifications by paper reduces the number of letters sent out. 
This reduction will not only be seen at Annual Billing in March, but also for the daily 
changes notified to the ARP during the year.
Prior to the annual Billing, all active accounts were sent a reminder via email which 
included the promotion of the use of Direct Debits. As this was carried out two weeks 
prior to billing, the additional benefit for the Anglia Revenues was gained by 
identifying incorrect or obsolete email addresses and the system Admin Team were 
able to cleanse the data prior to sending out the email notifications for E-billing.

8



4.2 Website

4.2.1 Following on from the successful re-design on the Anglia Revenues Website for 
Business Rates, a new design for Council Tax has now been launched. The aim of 
the new design is to enable the customer to access relevant information or able to 
complete a form in as few “clicks” as possible. 
Analysis is demonstrating the effectiveness of the design of the ARP website, with 
seven of the most visited pages are requiring action by the customer, for example 
paying council tax or informing of a change, all carried out online.  This in turn has 
the effect of reducing footfall to customer service.

4.3 Changes to Data Protection requirements

4.3.1 On May 25th 2018 new regulations with regard to Data Protection came into force 
with stricter rules on the use of personal data, known as General Data Protection 
Rules (GDPR). 
The Anglia Revenues Partnership works collectively providing the administration of 
the statutory legal obligation for Council Tax Collection, Business Rates, Housing 
Benefits and Council Tax Reduction Schemes. There is an ongoing action plan in 
place to continue compliance with the changing legislation, particularly with regard to 
the ability to comply with the new rights of the individual.
The data collected and processed by the ARP is solely for the purposes of Revenues 
and Benefits and  sharing of this data is only permitted in relation to processing of 
personal data provided under a legal obligation, for example to the Department of 
Work and Pensions. 
Each partner of the ARP is required to have a named Data Controller and these 
details are published on the ARP website. For a consistent approach to compliance 
with the GDPR across the partnership, a bi-monthly meeting is held between the data 
controllers and the ARP to discuss any procedural changes required to maintain the 
integrity and security of the Council Tax, Benefits and Business Rates data.

5.0     Options 

5.1    The report is for information purposes

6.0 Reasons for recommendations 

6.1    The report is for information only 

7.0   IMPLICATIONS

7.1    Risk

The report is for information only

7.2   Financial

        The report is for information only

7.3    Legal

The report is for information only

7.4    Equality and Diversity

Not applicable.

9



Background papers: - None
___________________________________________________________________
Lead Contact Officers
Name/Post: Adrian Mills/ Benefits Strategic Manager; Jo Andrews/Revenues Strategic 
Manager; Stuart Philpot/Support Strategic Manager
Email: Adrian.mills@angliarevenues.gov.uk; Jo.andrews@angliarevenues.gov.uk; 
stuart.philpot@angliarevenues.gov.uk

10

mailto:Adrian.mills@angliarevenues.gov.uk
mailto:Jo.andrews@angliarevenues.gov.uk


Customer Customer

Performance Management

Fraud

Days to Process
Customer Satisfaction

Budget Management

Learning and GrowthInternal Process

Collection

Customer

Fraud

Performance ManagementCollection

Collection

Financial

Customer Satisfaction

Fraud

Internal Process

Financial

Performance Management

Days to Process
Customer Satisfaction Collection

Budget Management

Learning and Growth

Internal Process

Customer Financial Customer

Internal ProcessLearning and Growth

Fraud
Collection

Customer Satisfaction
Days to ProcessBudget Management

Collection
Budget Management Days to Process

Customer Satisfaction
Days to Process

Financial

Internal Process

Financial

Learning and Growth Internal Process Learning and Growth

Collection

Customer

Customer Satisfaction
Days to Process

Collection
Budget Management

Collection

Performance Management

Customer Financial

Budget Management

Fraud

Performance Management

Collection Performance Management

Learning and Growth

Collection

Collection
Fraud

Performance Management
Fraud

Financial

Collection
Days to Process Budget Management

Internal Process

Customer Satisfaction

Collection

Learning and Growth

Corporate Balanced 
Scorecard - Dashboard

As at end Aug 2018

11



£0

£500,000

£1,000,000

£1,500,000

£2,000,000

£2,500,000

£3,000,000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year £510,988 £715,295 £843,124 £1,049,530 £1,218,423

Previous Year £208,246 £466,363 £618,833 £1,093,142 £1,399,074 £1,536,389 £1,699,874 £1,941,003 £2,040,852 £2,293,917 £2,574,613 £2,651,809

Target £108,333 £216,667 £325,000 £433,333 £541,667 £650,000 £758,333 £866,667 £975,000 £1,083,333 £1,191,667 £1,300,000

Value of Fraud Identified

This indicator measures the value of fraud identified by the ARP Fraud team, the 
target is to achieve the savings in the business case. 

Results are above profiled target and on track to achieve year-end target, but 
slightly below last year’s performance, mainly due to the cessation of 
Cambridgeshire work.

Internal Process Dimension Fraud

12



Customer Dimension
Channel Shift 

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year 2864 6128 9079 11338 15688

Previous Year 2588 5455 8324 11259 14317 17230 19682 21989 25329 29213 30281 31782

Number of e-forms (All councils)

This shows the number of E-Forms received by ARP for both Benefits and Council 
Tax with a significant upward trend in the use of electronic forms.

13



2017-18

Heading Example Indicator

Th
is

 m
on

th

La
st

 m
on

th

Y
TD

Fi
na

l

Collection Collection amounts

Budget Management Expenditure

Customer Satisfaction Survey results

Channel Shift Number of e-citizens / 
e-claims / e-forms

Council Tax Support

Housing Benefit

Collection Collection amounts

% Successful 
investigations

One to Ones 
completed within 
timeframe
%Appraisals 
completed within 
timeframe

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 G
ro

w
th

Performance 
Management

Summary Breckland Scorecard as at end Aug 2018

2018-19

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
C

us
to

m
er

In
te

rn
al

 
P

ro
ce

s
s

Fraud

Days to process

14



Breckland Finance Dimension
Collection Amounts

£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

£30,000,000

£35,000,000

£40,000,000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year £4,052,482 £6,830,333 £10,313,258 £13,224,418 £17,318,732

Previous Year £3,784,907 £6,668,544 £9,116,832 £11,533,578 £14,954,554 £17,836,817 £20,568,620 £23,417,928 £26,094,856 £28,588,517 £29,923,009 £30,716,188

Target £3,945,853 £6,828,390 £9,886,350 £12,429,566 £15,381,342 £19,116,141 £22,089,239 £25,061,705 £28,033,418 £31,005,747 £32,232,811 £33,414,639

Business Rates Collection - Net Business Rate Receipts

This shows the  amount of money required to be collected within the financial year, payable to the 
NNDR Collection Fund against the actual collection.   

15



£0

£10,000,000

£20,000,000

£30,000,000

£40,000,000

£50,000,000

£60,000,000

£70,000,000

£80,000,000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year £7,587,517 £14,529,700 £21,259,174 £28,085,754 £34,865,076

Previous Year £6,949,820 £13,385,061 £19,723,696 £26,047,523 £32,381,929 £38,673,103 £45,358,331 £51,717,408 £58,013,510 £64,274,587 £66,293,578 £68,710,234

Target £7,387,085 £14,425,954 £21,452,923 £28,006,590 £34,817,415 £41,581,757 £48,769,789 £55,607,140 £62,376,780 £69,108,761 £71,279,603 £73,878,018

Council Tax Collection - Net Council Tax Receipts

This shows the amount of Council Tax required to be collected within the financial year against 
actual collection. 

16



 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year 9 8.58 9.6 8.36 7.89

Previous Year 8.77 9.92 10.38 10.08 10.12 10.1 9.95 9.79 9.72 9.81 9.75 9.45

Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Council Tax Reduction scheme new claims & changes 

Breckland Customer Dimension
Benefits- Average Days to Process

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Council Tax Reduction scheme claims 
and changes against agreed targets. 

Please note we are on target for the current year.

17



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Current Year 8 7.56 8.8 7.92 7.41

Previous Year 8.12 8.77 9.26 9.11 9.21 9.23 9.14 9.01 8.96 8.97 7.06 6.99

Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Housing Benefit new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Housing Benefit claims and changes 
against agreed targets. 

Please note we are on target for the current year.

18



2017-18

Heading Example Indicator

Th
is

 m
on

th

La
st

 m
on

th

Y
TD

Fi
na

l

Collection Collection amounts

Budget Management Expenditure

Customer Satisfaction Survey results

Channel Shift Number of e-citizens / e-claims 
/ e-forms

Council Tax Support

Housing Benefit

Collection Collection amounts

Fraud % Successful investigations

One to Ones completed within 
timeframe

%Appraisals completed within 
timeframe

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 G
ro

w
th

Performance 
Management

Summary ECDC Scorecard as at end Aug 2018

2018-19

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
C

us
to

m
er

Days to process

In
te

rn
al

 
Pr

oc
es

s

19



ECDC Finance Dimension
Collection Amounts

£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year £2,004,484 £3,996,048 £6,038,653 £7,944,994 £9,976,499

Previous Year £2,184,334 £3,845,365 £5,932,195 £7,753,804 £9,795,096 £11,688,553 £13,358,621 £15,180,225 £17,068,668 £18,959,468 £19,723,027 £20,299,860

Target £1,927,208 £3,721,907 £5,605,097 £7,481,732 £9,248,374 £11,244,609 £13,057,590 £14,886,586 £16,746,230 £18,565,362 £19,198,569 £20,136,921

Business Rates Collection - Net Business Rate Receipts

This shows the amount of money required to be collected within the financial year, payable to the 
NNDR Collection Fund against the actual collection.  

20



£0

£10,000,000

£20,000,000

£30,000,000

£40,000,000

£50,000,000

£60,000,000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year £5,147,766 £10,018,620 £14,815,307 £19,637,500 £24,426,529

Previous Year £4,684,604 £9,316,971 £13,926,273 £18,495,379 £23,037,231 £27,595,309 £32,032,920 £36,658,930 £41,207,865 £45,677,512 £46,637,386 £48,054,762

Target £4,847,734 £9,809,475 £14,770,143 £19,501,867 £24,290,879 £29,097,000 £33,776,098 £38,653,848 £43,450,329 £48,163,206 £49,175,315 £50,669,823

Council Tax Collection - Net Council Tax Receipts

This shows the amount of Council Tax required to be collected within the financial year against 
actual collection.

21



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year 7.5 7.16 8.05 7.74 6.87

Previous Year 8.95 9.26 9.81 9.59 9.48 9.43 9.4 9.39 9.38 9.59 9.43 9.33

Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Council Tax Reduction scheme new claims & changes 

ECDC Customer Dimension
Benefits- Average Days to process

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Council Tax Reduction scheme claims 
and changes against agreed targets. 

Please note we are on target for the current year.

22



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year 6.5 6.12 7.11 6.75 6.45

Previous Year 8.47 8.3 8.9 8.91 8.79 8.78 8.71 8.69 8.64 8.83 6.99 6.93

Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Housing Benefit new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Housing Benefit claims and changes 
against agreed targets. 

Please note we are on target for the current year.

23



2017-18

Heading Example Indicator

Th
is

 m
on

th

La
st

 m
on

th

Y
TD

Fi
na

l

Collection Collection amounts

Budget Management Expenditure

Customer Satisfaction Survey results

Channel Shift Number of e-citizens / e-
claims / e-forms

Council Tax Support

Housing Benefit

Collection Collection amounts

Fraud % Successful 
investigations

One to Ones completed 
within timeframe

%Appraisals completed 
within timeframe

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 G
ro

w
th

Performance 
Management

Summary Fenland Scorecard as at end Aug 2018

2018-19

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
C

us
to

m
er

Days to process

In
te

rn
al

 
P

ro
ce

ss

24



£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

£30,000,000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year £2,197,133 £5,068,192 £7,407,980 £9,407,287 £11,143,227

Previous Year £2,634,307 £5,232,576 £7,731,991 £10,102,522 £12,598,067 £14,748,603 £17,046,800 £19,122,490 £21,362,953 £23,301,836 £24,020,986 £24,692,443

Target £2,442,656 £4,781,814 £7,199,524 £9,619,895 £12,128,435 £14,548,983 £16,971,436 £19,394,628 £21,556,162 £23,871,143 £24,723,353 £25,604,958

Business Rates Collection - Net Business Rate Receipts

Fenland Finance Dimension
Collection Amounts

This shows the  amount of money required to be collected within the financial year, payable to the 
NNDR Collection Fund against the actual collection.  

Collection is behind target due to refunds in relation to backdated Rateable Value changes. 
Provision is made in the accounts for this situation.

25



£0

£10,000,000

£20,000,000

£30,000,000

£40,000,000

£50,000,000

£60,000,000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year £5,318,884 £10,434,276 £15,322,657 £20,461,811 £25,413,185

Previous Year £4,838,222 £9,644,254 £14,313,608 £19,027,410 £23,694,368 £28,375,317 £33,178,514 £37,851,636 £42,536,696 £47,182,704 £48,369,902 £50,100,713

Target £5,028,437 £10,223,611 £15,419,193 £20,082,617 £25,008,391 £29,948,933 £35,018,501 £39,950,782 £44,895,662 £49,799,325 £51,052,361 £52,879,158

Council Tax Collection - Net Council Tax Receipts

This shows the amount of Council Tax required to be collected within the financial year against 
actual collection.

26



Fenland Customer Dimension
Benefits- Average Days to process

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year 7.9 8.06 9.44 8.8 7.7

Previous Year 8.83 9.92 10.26 9.74 9.85 9.89 9.73 9.55 9.49 9.61 9.3 9.24

Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Council Tax Reduction scheme new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Council Tax Reduction scheme claims and 
changes against agreed targets. 

Please note we are on target for the current year.

27



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Current Year 7.37 7.37 8.02 7.74 7.43

Previous Year 8.19 9.25 9.47 9.43 9.54 9.59 9.48 9.41 9.35 9.46 7.33 7.24

Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Housing Benefit new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Housing Benefit claims and changes against 
agreed targets. 

Please note we are on target for the current year.

28



2017-18

Heading Example Indicator

Th
is

 m
on

th

La
st

 m
on

th

Y
TD

Fi
na

l

Collection Collection amounts

Budget Management Expenditure

Customer Satisfaction Survey results

Channel Shift Number of e-citizens / e-
claims / e-forms

Council Tax Support

Housing Benefit

Collection Collection amounts

Fraud % Successful 
investigations

One to Ones completed 
within timeframe

%Appraisals completed 
within timeframe

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 G
ro

w
th

Performance 
Management

Summary Forest Heath Scorecard as at end Aug 2018

2018-19

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
C

us
to

m
er

Days to process

In
te

rn
al

 
Pr

oc
es

s

29



Forest Heath Finance Dimension
Collection Amounts

£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

£30,000,000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year £2,229,568 £4,740,551 £6,862,608 £9,058,341 £11,428,537

Previous Year £2,415,253 £4,685,685 £6,886,707 £9,043,104 £11,196,661 £13,524,059 £15,149,193 £17,056,945 £19,155,981 £21,115,998 £22,111,558 £23,029,748

Target £2,323,816 £4,406,206 £6,342,473 £8,526,873 £10,710,022 £13,180,012 £15,378,558 £17,560,082 £19,742,086 £21,697,173 £22,820,006 £23,972,646

Business Rates Collection - Net Business Rate Receipts

This shows the  amount of money required to be collected within the financial year, payable to the 
NNDR Collection Fund against the actual collection.  

30



£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

£30,000,000

£35,000,000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year £2,996,115 £5,823,967 £8,586,604 £11,391,050 £14,174,956

Previous Year £2,750,341 £5,480,371 £8,096,580 £10,703,179 £13,311,357 £15,910,779 £18,608,337 £21,215,226 £23,787,030 £26,363,137 £27,127,360 £28,373,767

Target £2,820,249 £5,717,870 £8,610,409 £11,302,773 £14,057,061 £16,802,103 £19,650,779 £22,403,706 £25,119,583 £27,840,003 £28,647,038 £29,963,269

Council Tax Collection - Net Council Tax Receipts

This shows the amount of Council Tax required to be collected within the financial year against 
actual collection.

31



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Current Year 7.5 7.7 9.21 6.54 8.17

Previous Year 8.36 9.64 10.14 9.57 9.6 9.62 9.64 9.55 9.34 9.43 9.04 9.06

Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Council Tax Reduction scheme new claims & changes 

Forest Heath Customer Dimension
Benefits- Average Days to process

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Council Tax Reduction scheme claims 
and changes against agreed targets. 

Please note we are on target for the current year.

32



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year 6 6 7.11 6.38 6.75

Previous Year 7.4 7.95 8.38 8.14 8.37 8.5 8.55 8.42 8.27 8.41 6.67 6.75

Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Housing Benefit new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Housing Benefit claims and changes 
against agreed targets. 

Please note we are on target for the current year.

33



2017-18

Heading Example Indicator

Th
is

 m
on

th

La
st

 m
on

th

Y
TD

Fi
na

l

Collection Collection amounts

Budget Management Expenditure

Customer Satisfaction Survey results

Channel Shift Number of e-citizens / e-
claims / e-forms

Council Tax Support

Housing Benefit

Collection Collection amounts

Fraud % Successful 
investigations

One to Ones completed 
within timeframe

%Appraisals completed 
within timeframe

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 G
ro

w
th

Performance 
Management

Summary St. Edmundsbury Scorecard as at end Aug 2018

2018-19

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
C

us
to

m
er

Days to process

In
te

rn
al

 
P

ro
ce

ss

34



St Edmundsbury Finance Dimension
Collection Amounts

£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

£30,000,000

£35,000,000

£40,000,000

£45,000,000

£50,000,000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year £4,549,576 £10,039,615 £14,344,109 £18,365,318 £23,083,092

Previous Year £6,046,238 £10,077,668 £14,421,878 £18,476,885 £22,750,245 £27,129,323 £31,044,516 £34,803,547 £38,700,611 £42,199,903 £43,867,069 £45,108,685

Target £4,666,024 £9,882,706 £13,990,243 £18,114,860 £22,411,096 £27,168,184 £31,264,548 £35,262,487 £39,192,901 £42,566,420 £44,430,993 £46,401,382

Business Rates Collection - Net Business Rate Receipts

This shows the  amount of money required to be collected within the financial year, payable to the 
NNDR Collection Fund against the actual collection.  

35



£0

£10,000,000

£20,000,000

£30,000,000

£40,000,000

£50,000,000

£60,000,000

£70,000,000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year £6,136,810 £12,123,401 £17,954,986 £23,835,395 £29,688,405

Previous Year £5,691,245 £11,381,571 £16,892,888 £22,541,431 £28,065,616 £33,597,536 £39,210,677 £44,745,929 £50,242,707 £55,681,890 £56,828,157 £58,501,957

Target £5,894,571 £11,874,930 £17,855,867 £23,541,952 £29,311,333 £35,088,793 £40,951,077 £46,732,017 £52,472,774 £58,153,380 £59,350,525 £61,098,618

Council Tax Collection - Net Council Tax Receipts

This shows the amount of Council Tax required to be collected within the financial year against 
actual collection.

36



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year 6.43 5.97 5.97 5.58 5.28

Previous Year 6.82 8.42 9 8.75 8.88 8.73 8.73 8.63 8.43 8.55 8.21 8.04

Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Council Tax Reduction scheme new claims & changes 

St Edmundsbury Customer Dimension
Benefits- Average Days to process

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Council Tax Reduction scheme claims 
and changes against agreed targets. 

Please note we are on target for the current year.

37



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Current Year 5.98 5.63 5.79 5.6 5.35

Previous Year 6.64 7.76 7.81 7.75 7.96 7.95 7.92 7.84 7.71 7.75 6.21 6.11

Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Housing Benefit new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Housing Benefit claims and changes 
against agreed targets. 

Please note we are on target for the current year.

38



2017-18

Heading Example Indicator

Th
is

 m
on

th

La
st

 m
on

th

Y
TD

Fi
na

l

Collection Collection amounts

Budget Management Expenditure

Customer Satisfaction Survey results

Channel Shift Number of e-citizens / e-claims 
/ e-forms

Council Tax Support

Housing Benefit

Collection Collection amounts

Fraud % Successful investigations

One to Ones completed within 
timeframe

%Appraisals completed within 
timeframe

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 G
ro

w
th

Performance 
Management

Summary Suffolk Coastal Scorecard as at end Aug 2018

2018-19

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
C

us
to

m
er

Days to process

In
te

rn
al

 
Pr

oc
es

s

39



Suffolk Coastal Finance Dimension
Collection Amounts

£0

£10,000,000

£20,000,000

£30,000,000

£40,000,000

£50,000,000

£60,000,000

£70,000,000

£80,000,000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year £5,831,107 £12,113,082 £18,179,139 £24,150,821 £30,660,517

Previous Year £5,253,963 £12,824,392 £18,861,334 £24,837,524 £31,733,150 £39,664,102 £44,142,729 £50,099,893 £55,969,669 £61,694,086 £66,011,164 £68,680,280

Target £4,448,236 £10,141,809 £16,485,527 £22,391,900 £28,812,924 £35,584,440 £41,477,431 £47,520,011 £53,313,960 £59,305,062 £63,424,511 £67,643,776

Business Rates Collection - Net Business Rate Receipts

This shows the  amount of money required to be collected within the financial year, payable to the 
NNDR Collection Fund against the actual collection.  

40



£0

£10,000,000

£20,000,000

£30,000,000

£40,000,000

£50,000,000

£60,000,000

£70,000,000

£80,000,000

£90,000,000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year £8,746,275 £16,748,933 £24,606,298 £32,377,747 £40,190,545

Previous Year £7,995,726 £15,481,220 £23,002,812 £30,342,861 £37,708,026 £45,340,413 £52,772,231 £60,081,954 £67,334,140 £74,598,550 £76,036,067 £78,338,085

Target £8,310,661 £16,261,897 £24,206,014 £32,146,099 £40,078,709 £48,508,809 £56,452,936 £64,386,846 £72,325,777 £80,256,328 £81,087,219 £81,852,617

Council Tax Collection - Net Council Tax Receipts

This shows the amount of Council Tax required to be collected within the financial year against 
actual collection.

41



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year 7.94 7.57 8.18 7.57 7.03

Previous Year 5.46 6.26 7.17 7.33 7.72 7.95 8.1 8.11 8.11 8.44 8.11 8.14

Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Council Tax Reduction scheme new claims & changes 

Suffolk Coastal Customer Dimension
Benefits- Average Days to Process

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Council Tax Reduction scheme claims 
and changes against agreed targets. 

Please note we are on target for the current year.

42



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year 7.2 6.55 7.11 6.7 6.37

Previous Year 5.58 5.97 6.65 6.82 7.26 7.5 7.63 7.77 7.6 7.94 6.18 6.26

Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Housing Benefit new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Housing Benefit claims and changes 
against agreed targets. 

Please note we are on target for the current year.

43



2017-18

Heading Example Indicator

Th
is

 m
on

th

La
st

 m
on

th

Y
TD

Fi
na

l

Collection Collection amounts

Budget Management Expenditure

Customer Satisfaction Survey results

Channel Shift Number of e-citizens / e-claims 
/ e-forms

Council Tax Support

Housing Benefit

Collection Collection amounts

Fraud % Successful investigations

One to Ones completed within 
timeframe

%Appraisals completed within 
timeframe

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 G
ro

w
th

Performance 
Management

Summary Waveney Scorecard as at end Aug 2018

2018-19

Fi
na

nc
ia

l
C

us
to

m
er

Days to process

In
te

rn
al

 
P

ro
ce

ss

44



Waveney Finance Dimension
Collection Amounts

£0

£5,000,000

£10,000,000

£15,000,000

£20,000,000

£25,000,000

£30,000,000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year £2,577,663 £4,272,030 £6,559,920 £9,109,614 £12,246,682

Previous Year £2,149,642 £4,785,176 £7,057,315 £8,892,439 £11,796,376 £14,011,634 £16,418,968 £18,713,482 £20,944,164 £23,036,375 £24,202,782 £25,057,512

Target £2,405,558 £4,550,077 £7,323,449 £9,568,706 £12,591,878 £14,974,827 £17,342,874 £19,683,355 £22,027,639 £24,037,070 £25,515,178 £26,718,175

Business Rates Collection - Net Business Rate Receipts

This shows the  amount of money required to be collected within the financial year, payable to the 
NNDR Collection Fund against the actual collection.  

Collection is behind target due to a large refund of £600K in respect of backdated mandatory 
charitable relief.

45



£0

£10,000,000

£20,000,000

£30,000,000

£40,000,000

£50,000,000

£60,000,000

£70,000,000

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year £5,977,555 £11,374,339 £16,712,313 £22,026,198 £27,350,970

Previous Year £5,534,482 £10,640,928 £15,684,871 £20,719,320 £25,747,070 £30,816,536 £36,153,892 £41,208,676 £46,177,421 £51,188,567 £53,903,442 £57,307,796

Target £5,727,689 £11,217,719 £16,713,517 £21,779,322 £27,064,293 £32,393,113 £38,003,529 £43,316,916 £48,539,862 £53,807,379 £56,661,147 £60,239,668

Council Tax Collection - Net Council Tax Receipts

This shows the amount of Council Tax required to be collected within the 
financial year against actual collection.

46



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Current Year 6.63 6.52 6.79 6.46 6.17

Previous Year 6.05 6.66 7.39 7.47 7.71 7.78 7.82 7.92 7.82 7.94 7.66 7.59

Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Council Tax Reduction scheme new claims & changes 

Waveney Customer Dimension
Benefits- Average Days to Process

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Council Tax Reduction scheme claims 
and changes against agreed targets. 

Please note we are on target for the current year.

47



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19
Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Current Year 6.96 7.09 7.9 7.56 7.11

Previous Year 6.8 7.55 8.44 8.36 8.72 8.99 9.01 9.08 8.88 9.06 6.82 6.73

Target 12 12 12 12 12 12 10 10 10 8 8 8

Days taken to process Housing Benefit new claims & changes 

This shows the average number of days taken to assess all Housing Benefit claims and changes 
against agreed targets. 

Please note we are on target for the current year.

48



BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Christine Marshall, Executive Director Commercialisation (ARP Treasurer)

To: Anglia Revenues Partnership, 25 September 2018

Author: Christine Marshall, Executive Director Commercialisation

Subject: ARP Financial Performance

Purpose: To provide information on the forecast full year financial position against 
budget for the ARP

Recommendation(s): 

1) That the report and appendices be noted.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 Each of the partner Councils provides forecast full year financial information against 
budget for the ARP.  The information is collated to provide an overall financial 
performance report, to provide information to Joint Committee on the progress against 
budget.  This report is based on information as at 31 July 2018 and all costs are included 
and shared based on the Partnership agreement.

1.2 The latest forecast shows an over spend against budget of £145k for the whole of the 
ARP and this is detailed further in Appendix A.  There are a few smaller value variances, 
but the main reason for this over spend is the efficiency target not achieved of £140k.

  
The efficiency target was originally set at £1,017k for 2018-19, meaning that 86% of this 
target has been achieved to date.  The target was originally calculated based on the 
expected combined level of reduction in the Housing Benefit Subsidy grant, which is 
retained directly by the partner authorities.  The actual combined level of reduction in the 
Housing Benefit Subsidy grant has been lower than forecast at £629k, meaning that 
individual partner authorities have seen increased income within their direct budgets as 
well as the efficiencies achieved through the ARP.

1.3 Appendix A also provides details on the remaining transformation funding which was set 
aside in previous years from below budget spend and grant funding.  These funds will 
provide service improvements and deliver future efficiencies and there remains £28k un-
allocated.

1.4 We are expecting further efficiencies from other Councils joining the Enforcement service 
(£50k from 19-20) and longer term efficiencies from the Robotics projects plus any future 
new burdens funding not required to provide services, however there are no other 
initiatives in the pipeline to achieve the remaining target.  The efficiency target will be 
reviewed when budgets are set in quarter 2 of this financial year so they only show 
potential income from Enforcement and Robotics, recognising that the Housing Benefit 
Subsidy grant reductions have not been as high as originally forecast.

The ARP currently holds £171k in reserve to cover a shortfall in the efficiency target in any 
one year, this value was set aside from over achieved efficiencies in earlier years.  This 
could be utilised if needed this year, however it is only a one off value and is not 

49

Agenda Item 5b



replenished.  At this early stage in the year it is not recommended that the reserve be 
used as further efficiencies or income may be generated later in the year and this will be 
monitored and reported on accordingly.

1.5 There remains a lack of certainty regarding the value of DWP subsidy for Universal Credit 
(UC), as it is subject to the DWP determining activity volumes and their plans for UC 
expansion.  The DWP have delayed announcing their timetable for authorities to migrate 
existing cases to UC – we anticipate announcements might be forthcoming later this year.  
The DWP subsidy for UC is retained directly by the partner authorities.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 That the report and appendices are noted.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 To provide Members information on the financial position against budget for the whole of 
the ARP.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 To provide Members information on the financial position against budget for the whole of 
the ARP.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation Programme; 
Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under one or more 
of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1 Financial 
5.1.1 This report is financial in nature and financial information is included within the report and 

appendices. 

5.2 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales
5.12.1 Accountants at the partner Councils have been consulted on their financial forecasts.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 N/A

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 ARP – Anglia Revenues Partnership

Background papers:- See The Committee Report Guide for guidance on how to complete 
this section

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Alison Chubbock, Chief Accountant

50

file:///G:/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
file:///G:/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc


Telephone Number: 01362 656865
Email: alison.chubbock@breckland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

This report refers to a Mandatory & Discretionary Services

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Financial performance report

51



Description

Approved Budget 

2018/19

Forecast Actuals            

2018/19

Forecast Variance 

Over/(Under) Variance Notes

£ £ £ %

Employee Related Costs 8,547,115 8,581,097 33,982 0.40 1

Premises Related Costs 272,300 267,700 (4,600) (1.69)

Transport Related Costs 147,523 148,466 943 0.64

Supplies & Services 1,549,142 1,545,390 (3,752) (0.24)

Support Services 631,126 617,778 (13,348) (2.11) 2

Income (2,119,458) (2,128,335) (8,877) 0.42

Efficiency Target (140,251) 0 140,251 (100.00) 3

 

TOTAL PARTNERSHIP COSTS 8,887,497 9,032,096 144,599 1.63 4

.

Variance Notes

All costs in the above table are split based on the Joint Committee agreement

4.  The predicted outturn includes the efficiency target to be achieved of £140,251, this could be further covered by monies held in reserves as a one off exercise if 

required.  However no action will be taken on reserve funding until later in the year once the level of Enforcement income is more certain.

Anglia Revenues Partnership Joint Committee

Forecast Full Year Financial Performance as at 31/07/18

1.  The employee over spend is due to some authorities not budgeting for the 2% increase to salaries and the cost of additional staff and will be offset by future savings 

through ongoing vacancies.

2.  The underspend is due to less postages being franked as the procured service is utilised more and is better value.

3.  The efficiency target shortfall is the remaining target yet to be achieved and could be further covered by monies held in reserves as a one off exercise if required if 

the efficiency is not achieved in year.  

52



Transformation funding - committed expenditure as follows;

Description

Approved Budget 

2018/19

Forecast Actuals            

2018/19

Forecast Actuals            

2019/20 Approved by OIB

£ £ £

The funding below is from previous years' surpluses and new burdens funding.

Mitel Join Up 35,000 35,000 0 2015-16

EDMS 20,000 20,000 0 2015-16

Organisational - Develop agile organisation 10,000 10,000 0 2016-17

Commercial - Accredited trainer 5,409 5,409 0 2016-17

Robotics 30,000 30,000 0 2016-17

Total 100,409 100,409 0

Unallocated 27,928 27,928 0

Grand Total 128,337 128,337 0

Efficiency Target

Approved Budget 

2018/19

Approved Budget 

2019/20

Approved Budget 

2020/21

£ £ £

Target (373,567) (424,100) (444,315) 

New Burdens Welfare Reform 176,146 0 0

Universal Credit 57,170

Total Efficiencies made to date within ARP 233,316 0 0

Total Efficiency Target to achieve (140,251) (424,100) (444,315) 

The committed transformation funding is £128,337 as at 31st July 2018.  It is expected that the budget will be spent by the end of the year. If all of the identified 

expenditure goes through in 2018/19 there will be £27,928 remaining for future projects, however, it is likely that this will be spent on projects this year.53



ANGLIA REVENUES PARTNERSHIP

Report of Adrian Mills – ARP Strategic Manager (Benefits)

To:             ARP Joint Committee, 25th September 2018 

Subject: Welfare Reform

Purpose: To provide an update on welfare reform

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

1.1.1 Welfare Reform was introduced by Government in 2012 as part of wider fiscal 
measures to reduce deficits, with the intention to encourage work whilst reducing 
increasing welfare expenditure.

2.0 Matters of interest

2.1 Universal Credit

2.1.1 Councils live with new claims from single unemployed customers since April 2016 
have continued to do so, however from 1st January 2018 DWP ceased additional 
Councils participating in the Live Service.

2.1.2 Since May 2016 the DWP embarked upon a programme to expand Universal Credit 
in a controlled manner to the full, digital, Universal Credit service. Amongst the 
partner Councils, Waveney has been live with the full service since May 2016, St 
Edmundsbury October 2017 and for Breckland Dereham customers from June 2018. 

2.1.3 In September 2017 the DWP confirmed the roll out schedule for all Jobcentres and 
Councils for the period October 2017 to September 2018. Government Budget 
announcement December 2017 put back the schedule by a further three months. The 
full Universal Credit service will be open to all new claims from all working age 
claimant groups. This will also include customers currently receiving existing Benefits 
or Tax Credits who have a change of circumstances that triggers a new claim to 
Universal Credit. The following table states the DWPs current planning assumptions 
for ARP Councils:

Council Roll out 

Breckland - Thetford September 2018
East Cambridgeshire September 2018
Fenland September 2018
Suffolk Coastal October 2018
Forest Heath December 2018

We have become aware other Jobcentres rolling out the full UC service are and will 
impact upon some of our customers in certain post codes – we are working with the 
Jobcentre and those customers affected to provide assistance and guidance.  

Recommendation(s):

 That the report is noted

54

Agenda Item 6



2.1.4 Further Government Budget announcements included the following improvements:
 Live Service closure 1st January 2018
 Removal of seven waiting days prior to claim start date from 14th February 2018
 Claims from the 14th February 2018 will now usually be paid in one month and 

seven days, rather than one month and 14 days
 Claimants can request a 100% advance payment, increased from 50% from the 

14th February 2018
 Temporary accommodation cases to be assessed in Housing Benefit from April 

2018. Whilst this applies to new claims, existing cases will only migrate to 
Housing Benefit following specified change events.

 Extra two weeks Housing Benefit to be automatically awarded from April 2018 
when UC is claimed 

 Improvements to process for private landlords to request an Alternative Payment 
Arrangement (direct payment to landlord) 

2.1.5 Waveney, St Edmundsbury and now Breckland have not been alone in experiencing 
difficulties with the Full Service; customer assistance taking longer than predicted, IT 
problems, delays awarding payments and alternative payment arrangements to 
landlords continue to cause issues with rent collection for landlords. 

2.1.6 These matters have been raised locally and through the UC/LA Steering group I have 
brought these issues to the attention of the UC Programme; furthermore 
representations have been made to the DWP Secretary of State leading to a meeting 
earlier last year between the Waveney Leader, local MP and myself with the UC 
Minister at Lowestoft Jobcentre. The Waveney MP continues to be actively involved 
in Parliamentary debates on UC, supported by the Head of Customer Services and 
myself. 

2.1.7 ARP continues to work with Customer Services, Housing Options teams, DWP and 
stakeholders to plan for the roll out timetable. A significant amount of investment in 
partnership working was undertaken at Waveney between the ARP, Customer 
Services, the DWP and stakeholders to plan for and minimise the impact of UC. This 
has become our template for partner Councils, successfully used with St 
Edmundsbury at the end of last year, more recently at Breckland for Dereham 
customers and for the remaining partner Councils during September and October, 
completing December 2018.

2.1.8 The programme to migrate existing Housing Benefit (and other DWP Benefit and Tax 
Credits) cases, has been delayed by twelve months so is now planned to commence 
in July 2019, and announced on the 6th June 2018 that the completion date has been 
extended by a further 12 months to March 2023. DWP have been bereft of 
announcements.

2.1.9 DWP have not made any further announcements regarding Housing Benefit for 
Pensioners. The DWP position continues to be that this will reviewed during the next 
Parliament and will not start until after March 2023, and only when all Working Age 
cases have migrated to Universal Credit.  

2.1.10 At a national level I continue to raise concerns with
 The six (now five) week wait for UC payments
 Alternative Payment Arrangements for Private Landlords
 Housing Benefit Debt
 Public awareness
 LA funding
 Management Information
 LA access to UC Information
 Plans to migrate existing customers to UC – indications are there will not be any 

automatic uplift of data  

55



2.1.11 In August ARP responded to a Social Security Advisory Committee (SSAC) 
consultation on the DWPs UC managed migration draft regulations. This led to a call 
for evidence meeting with SSAC and DWP along with the LGA.

2.1.11 Working with Customer Services we have introduced the following enhancements:
 Dedicated vulnerable persons Officer
 Delivered training to Jobcentre Work Coaches
 Reviewed the DWP UC training pack – implemented nationally by DWP
 Created a Private Landlords information pack

2.1.12 DWP UC announcement 6th June 2018

DWP published their UC Business case and the following improvements:   

 Claimants in receipt of Severe Disability Benefit will remain on legacy Benefits 
until transitional protection can be awarded – customers have been missing out 
on up to £62 per week

 Strengthening work incentives for parents by protecting child care costs
 Ensuring short term increases in earnings do not disadvantage customers
 The managed migration end date has been extended by 12 months to March 

2023 – still planned to commence July 2019
 DWP will then review Pensioner Housing Benefit and stated Councils can expect 

to deliver Pensioner HB beyond 2023 

2.2 Discretionary Housing Payment 

2.2.1 Spend continues to be within DWP grant and is forecast to be within the grant. The 
main area of expenditure continues to be to assist customers with rent shortfalls, in 
particular due to restrictions on Housing Benefit rent levels. The scheme is promoted 
through our stakeholder contacts. 

2.2.2 Discretionary Housing Payment grant is funded by DWP, designed to help customers 
remain in their homes or to move to affordable and sustainable accommodation. 
Generally the allocations for 2018/19 have been reduced.

2.3 Benefit Cap

2.3.1 DWP introduced the reduced Benefit Cap on the 7th November 2016; the maximum 
family income before the Benefit Cap applies reduced from £26,000 to £20,000 
(£13,400 for single adults with no children).

2.3.2 The Benefit Service continues to work with colleagues in Customer Service and 
Housing Options teams to seek to avoid homelessness and the cost of temporary 
housing. 

2.3.3 DWP have provided New Burdens funding to assist Councils with extra administrative 
costs and have increased Discretionary Housing Payment grants to help customers 
with the reduction – it should be noted the increase does not cover all the reductions. 

2.4     Two Child Limit 

2.4.1 From April 2017 the DWP have introduced legislation to restrict new claims from 
families with a third child to the two child rate; there are exceptions, for example 
multiple births. Transitional protection applies to existing claims.

2.4.2 New claims for Universal Credit where an applicant has more than two children will 
be redirected to legacy Benefits i.e. Housing Benefit.

2.5 Social rented sector rent restrictions 

56



2.5.1 In August Government finally responded to consultation on funding for supported 
housing, dropping proposals to move away from a subsidised demand led model to a 
grant model. Therefore, Supported accommodation, including hostel tenancies will 
remain in Housing Benefit and will not move to Universal Credit.  

3.0 Options 

3.1 The report is for information purposes

4.0 Reasons for recommendations 

4.1 The report is for information only 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Risk

The report is for information only

5.2 Financial

The report is for information only

5.3 Legal

The report is for information only

5.4 Equality and Diversity

Not applicable.

Background papers: - None
___________________________________________________________________
Lead Contact Officer
Name/Post: Adrian Mills – Strategic Manager (Benefits)
Email: Adrian.mills@angliarevenues.gov.uk

57

mailto:Adrian.mills@angliarevenues.gov.uk


ANGLIA REVENUES PARTNERSHIP

Report of Paul Corney - Head of ARP

To: ARP Joint Committee, 28 September 2018

Subject: Partnership working through section 113 agreement.

Purpose: To provide an update on the Section 113 agreement with Norwich City 
Council (NoCC).

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

1.1.1 On 19th March 2015 the Joint Committee decided that ARP would be closed to any 
new full partners or members of the Joint Committee for the foreseeable future.

1.1.2 The Joint Committee has subsequently agreed that, where it will benefit the seven 
ARP partners, then ARP will enter into separate arrangements to provide or share 
services with other Councils with regard to specific elements of their Revenues & 
Benefits function. Such benefits will include creating greater resilience and/or 
generating further efficiencies to meet ARP’s Medium Term Financial Strategy.

1.1.3 On 20 September 2016 the Joint Committee asked for a formal paper to be brought 
to the meeting for formal approval of a Section 113 agreement to create a shared 
management arrangement with Norwich City Council.

1.1.4 Section 113 of the Local Government Act 1972 enables Local Authorities to enter into 
an agreement as follows:

“a local authority may enter into an agreement with another local authority for the 
placing at the disposal of the latter for the purposes of their functions, on such terms 
as may be provided by the agreement, of the services of officers employed by the 
former, but shall not enter into any such agreement with respect to any officer without 
consulting him.”

1.1.5 Norwich City Council (‘Norwich’) took their Revenues and Benefits service out of their  
partnership arrangement with Local Government Shared Services (LGSS) with effect 
from 1st April 2017.

1.1.6 The service was brought back in-house, meaning that the Senior Management Team 
for LGSS Revenues and Benefits would no longer manage Norwich’s service. The 
transfer back to Norwich included two operational managers for Revenues and for 
Benefits but, no Head of Service.

1.1.7 On the 6th December 2016 the Joint Committee agreed to recommendations leading 
to the ARP providing support for the Norwich Revenues and Benefits service when 
they brought it in house. Such support has involved providing mentoring and 
coaching for the operational managers and providing strategic management services 
for Norwich, essentially to act as the Head of Service.

Recommendation(s):

1. That the report is noted.

58

Agenda Item 7



1.2 Benefits to Norwich of partnership working

1.2.1 With the roll out of Universal Credit The ARP have been able to share our knowledge 
and experience of the transition to universal Credit as working age claims are dealt 
with by DWP with councils’ support.

1.2.2 Norwich job centres start to take claims in September and the Strategic Manager 
(Benefits) has been involved in planning the transition for customers from Housing 
Benefit claims to Universal Credit.

1.2.3 The Norwich Operational mangers have been supported by the ARP Strategic 
Manager Benefits and the Strategic Manager Revenues in delivering services and in 
managing resources. Norwich performance was the best it has been in 2017/18.

1.2.4 The Strategic Management Team have been able to mirror initiatives that ARP have 
implemented some time ago. A number of business cases have been presented to 
the senior management team at Norwich to suggest ways to maximise income from 
Council Tax and Housing Benefit Overpayments.
 Resource to improve recovery of Council Tax have led to additional arears 

recovery of over £300k in 5 months  – jointly funded by Norwich and Norfolk 
County Council.

 The purchase of Council Tax recovery modules to help to automate the recovery 
processes to further improve recovery.

 Additional resource to recover Housing Benefit overpayments leading to £300k 
reduction in bad debt per annum.

 Work on Council Tax Support and Single Person Discount to identify where 
people claim in error or fraudulently on target to achieve up to £400k additional 
Council tax debit – jointly funded by Norfolk County Council.

 Procurement of online benefit forms and e-billing products that will improve 
customer access and provide efficiencies for the Council.

1.3 Benefits for ARP

1.3.1 The Strategic managers have been able to share best practice across both 
organisations and share knowledge of and compare system functionality, this has 
enabled ARP to put pressure on our suppliers where they are behind on 
development.

1.3.2 The sharing of our management team and Fraud Services have provided ARP with 
efficiencies and further resilience. 

1.3.3 Approvals are currently being sought for Norwich to delegate its’ Enforcement work 
to Breckland Council and Breckland will pass this work to ARP Enforcement to carry 
out on Breckland Councils behalf. This will provide further resilience to our team.

2.0 Options 

 To approve the recommendation

3.0 Reasons for recommendations 

The continued approach is preferred as it offers the following benefits:

 The sharing of best practice and efficiencies.
 The provision of other shared services with Norwich;
 Additional future cases for the Enforcement Agency leading to additional 

efficiencies/resilience;
 The continuance of robust and resilient strategic and operational management.

59



4.0   IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Risk

It is recognised that in supporting an eighth Council this spreads the overall 
management resources more thinly.  However, the management team operates at a 
strategic level and is able to remove any duplication, offering all eight Authorities a 
single solution.

4.2 Financial

Norwich contribute £81,600 in 2018/19 and £83,232 from 2019/20 towards the cost of 
the shared management team.  Subsequently Norwich have shared the ARP fraud 
service (funding shared by Norfolk County Council and will pass Enforcement cases to 
Breckland Council which will be actioned on Brecklands behalf by the ARP 
Enforcement Team:

4.3 Legal

The Section 113 agreement was negotiated by the Operational Improvement Board (in 
consultation with Members), and agreed by the Councils’ legal teams and have 
received formal approval by each Council.

4.4 Equality and Diversity

Not applicable.
___________________________________________________________________

Lead Contact Officer
Name/Post: Paul Corney (Head of the ARP)
Email: paul.corney@angliarevenues.gov.uk

60



ANGLIA REVENUES PARTNERSHIP

Report of Jill Korwin – Director for West Suffolk Councils & Nick Khan – Strategic 
Director for East Suffolk Councils 

To:             Anglia Revenues Partnership Joint Committee, 25 September 2018 

Subject: The Reconstitution Agreement and Decision Making Process following the 
mergers that will create East Suffolk Council and West Suffolk Council

Purpose: To consider options arising from the change in ARP membership following the 
abolishment of four member authorities and the creation of two new member 
authorities in their place on 01 April 2019

1.0 Introduction

1.0.1 Further to the report that was considered by Joint Committee on 25th June, this 
report provides further information on the governance implications and options for 
the Anglia Revenue Partnership (ARP) as a result of the Councils merging in East 
and West Suffolk.

2. Statutory Arrangements

2.0.1 On the 24 May 2018 the Secretary of State, in exercise of the powers conferred by 
sections 10, 11, 12 and 13 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007(1) made The East Suffolk (Local Government Changes) Order 
2018 and The West Suffolk (Local Government Changes) Order 2018.  These 
orders take effect on 01 April 2019 to create two new non-metropolitan districts and 
councils for East and West Suffolk respectively and abolish Suffolk Coastal District, 
Waveney District, Forest Heath District and St Edmundsbury Borough Councils (the 
Four Councils).

2.0.2 In addition to the Orders referred to above, Regulations will follow that are currently 
in draft form.  The Local Government (Boundary Changes) (General) Regulations 
2018 sets out the arrangements following the abolishment of the Four Councils and 
Regulation 7(3) in the current draft provides that anything done by, or in relation to 
[any of the Four Councils] in the exercise of, or in connection with, a function that is 
to be exercised on and after the reorganisation date by the successor council shall 
have effect as if done by, or in relation to, that council. Regulation 7(4) confirms that 
this applies in particular to any agreement or decision.  This means that in terms of 
the ARP Reconstitution Agreement any obligations on or rights held by any one of 
the Four Councils will automatically held by the relevant successor council (i.e. East 
or West Suffolk Councils). 

2.0.3 Part 3 of the current Anglia Revenues Partnership Reconstitution Agreement, as 
amended by the Joint Committee, sets out the role, membership, meetings and 
officers of the Joint Committee and provides at clause 3.1 that each of the Seven 
Councils shall appoint one of its members (and one substitute) for the time being to 
be members of the Joint Committee.  Clause 3.17 further provides that in the event 
of an equality of votes the chair shall have a second or casting vote.  

Recommendation(s): 
I. The Joint Committee approves a full review of the Partnership Agreement to be 

completed within six months of the abolishment of the Four Councils. 
II. The review will include (but not be limited to) a review of the decision making 

process to allow for certain decisions to only be carried if the vote is unanimous.  
III. During this period the successor councils shall have the same number of 

representatives as the other member Councils.

61

Agenda Item 8



2.0.4 In applying Regulation 7(3) of The Local Government (Boundary Changes) 
(General) Regulations 2018 as referenced above, this would mean that from the 01 
April 2019 the number of representatives appointed to the Joint Committee on behalf 
of each of the Four Councils would continue thus enabling (in theory) both East 
Suffolk Council and West Suffolk Council to have twice as many representatives on 
the Joint Committee than any of the other member Councils.

3. Decision Making 

3.0.1 The Reconstitution Agreement is silent on how decisions are made with the only 
reference to voting being within Clause 3.1 of the Agreement, as referred to above.  
It would therefore appear that any decisions to be made by the Joint Committee (on 
matters as set out within the Agreement) are made on a majority basis with the Chair 
having the casting vote.

3.0.2 Should the partnership agreement be reviewed, it is an opportunity to consider the 
decision making process and should any decisions require a unanimous vote.

3.0.3 The role of the Joint Committee is set out in clause 3.26 of the Agreement and is 
mainly to discharge the Seven Council’s statutory functions in respect of the JC 
Services as defined in Schedule 1 to the Agreement.  The JC Services relate to the 
collection of council tax and business rates and administration of relevant benefits 
e.g. Council Tax (calculation, billing, recovery, enforcement) business rates (billing, 
recovery, enforcement), Benefits administration (incl. overpayments) and anti-fraud 
measures. 

3.0.4 The Joint Committee may also approve the service delivery plan for each year to 
include staffing requirements, approve the annual budget, approve the annual 
report, monitor expenditure and income against the agreed budget, set progress and 
performance targets for the JC Services, recommend any amendment of the terms 
of reference of the Joint Committee or Reconstitution Agreement, review audits and 
policies and appoint sub-committees as may be required and to delegate specific 
functions to those committees. 

3.0.5 Any decisions which fall outside the remit of the Joint Committee (as set out in 
clause 3.26 of the Agreement referred to above) would need to be referred back to 
each of the member Councils.

4. Review of Partnership

4.0.1 Clause 11 of the Reconstitution Agreement provides that at any time any one or 
more of the Seven Councils may seek a review of the Agreement and the operation 
of the ARP and its performance of the JC Services by giving notice to that effect 
(“Review Notice”) to the other or others of the Seven Councils.  The agreement 
specifies the process that must be followed and is set out below.

4.0.2 On the service of a Review Notice the Chief Executives of the Seven Councils will 
consider the request within two weeks and propose recommendations to the 2015 
Joint Committee arising from this and thereafter a meeting of the 2015 Joint 
Committee shall be convened within the period of Seven weeks from the date that 
the Chief Executives have considered the Review Notice and made 
recommendations and the 2015 Joint Committee shall determine the terms of 
reference of the review to be undertaken and the person or persons by whom it is to 
be conducted and the timescale for its completion. 

4.0.3 On production of the report of the review of this Agreement (“Review Report”) copies 
thereof shall be supplied to each of the Seven Councils for them to comment on in 
accordance with such reasonable timescale as the 2015 Joint Committee shall 
decide.

62



4.0.4 On receipt of comments from each of the Seven Councils within the timescale (or 
any extension thereof agreed by the 2015 Joint Committee) the 2015 Joint 
Committee shall meet to consider the content and recommendations of the Review 
Report in the light of the comments received from the Seven Councils and submit to 
the Seven Councils the revisions and amendments (if any) it proposes be made to 
this Agreement and this Agreement shall be amended (or if not amended shall be 
deemed to have been amended) to accord with the proposals of the Review Report 
(as revised and amended by the 2015 Joint Committee) with effect from such date 
as determined by the 2015 Joint Committee.

4.0 Options 

4.0.1 Officers have considered the constitutional changes to the Anglia Revenues 
Partnership arising from the abolishment of the four member authorities and there are 
broadly three options:

Option Comments Risks
1 Do othing - make no changes to 

the Current  Agreement as the 
Orders referenced in 2.02 and 2.04 
above mean that rights will 
automatically pass to the new 
Councils 

East Suffolk Council and 
West Suffolk Council 
would each continue to 
have the same number 
of representative(s) as 
previously held by their 
predecessor councils, 
i.e. two votes each 
whereas the remaining 
member Councils would 
only have one vote each

Whilst this approach would 
reflect the relative size of 
the new Councils, it would 
create a perceived 
inbalance not in the spirit 
of a collaborative 
partnership.  This could 
impact on the positive 
relationships that partners 
currently enjoy working 
towards the ARP vision

2 Undertake a review of the 
Constitution of Anglia Revenues 
Partnership and enter into a new 
Reconstitution Agreement on 01 
April 2019

This is time restricted 
and all parties will be 
required to agree any 
proposed amendments 
to the constitutional 
arrangements for ARP

A full review of the 
governance and budget 
arrangements will need to 
be undertaken before the 
new Agreement is 
entered.  The short time 
frame could mean that this 
is not completed in the 
most robust way.   

3 Undertake a full review of the 
Agreement to include a review of 
the decision making process to 
allow for certain decisions to only 
be carried if the vote is unanimous.  
Such review to be completed within 
six months of the abolishment of 
the Four Councils during which 
period the successor councils shall 
have the same number of 
representatives as the other 
member Councils.

The review can be 
started now but by 
deferring completion 
ensures enough time is 
undertaken to complete it 
diligently.  

During the review period 
issues may arise that 
partners do not agree on, 
delaying the 
implementation of the new 
agreement. 

3.0 Proposal
It is proposed the Joint Committee agrees to Option 3 and a proposal is drafted for 
this review in accordance with Clause 11 of the ARP Agreement. The review will be 
co-ordinated by the Operational Improvement Board liaising with members and will 
be reported back to the Joint Committee for decision in June 2019.    An outline 
timeline is suggested at Appendix 1.

3.0 Reasons for recommendations 

63



3.1 Option 3 will meet the requirements of all partner Councils creating a new equitable 
partnership and ensuring that the partnership agreement is up to date. 

5.1 Risk

If there is not agreement between all partners as to the proposed course of action, this 
could undermine the wider performance and decision making of the partnership.  
Ultimately, any partner could terminate its membership of the partnership

5.2 Financial

The creation of the new Councils has had financial implications for the partnership. A 
full project plan and budget has been approved by the 4 Councils affected. 

5.3 Legal

Ultimately a new Partnership agreement will be put in place. 

5.4 Equality and Diversity

Not applicable.

Background papers: - None
___________________________________________________________________
Lead Contact Officers

Name/Post: Jill Korwin, Director
Email: jill.korwin@westsuffolk.gov.uk

Name/Post: Nick Khan, Director
Nick.khan@eastsuffolk.gov.uk 

64

mailto:jill.korwin@westsuffolk.gov.uk
mailto:Nick.khan@eastsuffolk.gov.uk


Appendix One: Proposed Timeline for review of partnership agreement

What Who When
Serve review notice to Chief 
Execs of partner Councils

East & West Suffolk 
Councils 

1 Nov 2018

Chief Execs review request Directors/OIB on behalf of 
C-Execs and feedback 

By 31 Nov 2018 

Joint Committee meeting to 
review request and 
determine TOR 

Joint Committee Next scheduled JC, 
December 2018

Review undertaken Overseen by OIB according 
to TOR

Jan to April 2019

Report back to Councils  for 
feedback 

OIB prepare report May/June 2019

Joint Committee review 
feedback and proposals 

Joint Committee June 2019 

Agreement by partners and 
implementation 

All partners September 2019 

65


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes

	5a Highlight Report and Balance Scorecard
	ARP Balanced scorecard  Aug 2018-19
	Layout 1 - simple added graph
	All Councils Graphs
	JC Supporting sheet Breckland
	JC Graphs Breckland 
	JC Supporting sheet ECDC
	JC Graphs ECDC
	JC Supporting sheet Fenland
	JC Graphs Fenland
	JC Supporting sheet FH
	JC Graphs Forest Heath
	JC Supporting sheet St Ed
	JC Graphs St Edmundsbury
	JC Supporting sheet Coastal
	JC Graphs Coastal
	JC Supporting sheet Waveney
	JC Graphs Waveney


	5b ARP Financial Performance Report
	Appendix 1 for ARP Financial Performance Report

	6 Welfare Reform Update (Standing Item)
	7 Norwich Partnership - Partnership Working through Section 113 Agreement
	8 Options for New Partnership Agreement

